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In accordance with Section 1145 Florida Statutes and Section 411 of the City Charter
submitted herewith is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report CAFR for the fiscal year
ended September 302004

The fmancial statements included in this rl3rt confonn to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America GAAP as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board GASB The City is responsible for the accuracy of the data and the

completeness and fairness of the presentation mcluding all disclosures The fmancial statements
have been audited by Keefe McCullough Co LLP Certified Public Accountants The

independent auditors have issued an unqualified opinion that this report fairly presents the
fmancial position of the City and complies with all reporting standards noted above

The CAFR is divided into four parts Introductory Section Financial Section Statistical
Section and Other Reports of Independent Auditors

The Introductory Section provides a summary ofthe contents of the entire report and general
information about the reportmg entity The Financial Section includes the Auditors Opinion
Managements Discussion and Analysis the Basic Financial Statements Notes to the Financial
Statements Combining Financial Statements Required Supplementary Information and Other
Financial Information which includes other statements ana schedules provided to supplement
required financial data The Statistical Section includes a number of tables that rovide
historical social economic and financial trend data that offers an overview of the City s fiscal
siruation This section is not included within the scope of the Auditors opinion or other reports

The contents of this report are aimed at compliance with GASB pronouncements including
Statement No 34 requiring the preparation of new governmentwide fmancial statements on a

fullaccrual basis of accounting for all funds and including ManagementsDiscussion and

Analysis

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The City of Aventura was incorporated on November 7 1995 and is a political subdivision of
the State of Florida The City ojJerates under a commissionmanager form of government and

provides General Government Public Safety and Community Services to its residents and
business community The Mayor and six CIty Commissioners are resRonsible for establishing
policies for City Government The Mayor and Commission appoint the City Manager who is the
Chief Administrative Officer of the City and is responsible for implementing policIes adopted by
the Commission

i
PHONE 3054668900 FAX 3054668939
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This report includes all of the funds and account groups for which the City of A venrura is

financially accountable Although the MiamiDade Board of County Commissioners MiamiDade
District School Board South Florida Water Management District and Florida Inland Navigation
District levy and collect taxes on property located within the corporate limits of the City ofAventura
financial information on these taxing authorities is not included in this report since each has a separate
elected governing body are legally separate and are fiscally independent of the City Annual
financial reports of these units of government are available upon request from each authority

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The City ofAventura serves an area of approximately 4 square miles with an estimated population
of approximately 28000 residents Prior to incorporation the City received services from Miami
Dade County as a part of their unincorporated municipal services taxing unit The City received no

real property facilities or equipment from MiamiDade County upon incorporation

The Citys combination of upscale residential and commercial developments results in a taxable
value of46billion with a land area ofless than 4 square miles This makes the City ofAvenruras
taxable value per capita ofapproximately 164000 among the highest in the County and State The
200304fiscal year was another active construction year for the City with a good combination of

upscale housing and commercial projects An analysis of projects in the various stages of the

planning and development process indicates that building activity will continue to be geared toward
similar type activities for two to three more years The Citysimge as an upscale community will
be further enhanced by the changes discussed under Major Initiatives

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Theestblishment of a new municipal government structure to meet the needs ofan existing City
resident and business base has required the dedication of elected officials the City Manager and all

employees The foundation on which to build the government structure has emphasized customer

service onestop shopping and privatization where appropriate

During the first five years of the Citysexistence the City focused on the infrastructure needs of
the community In 2002 the City Commission adopted a series of initiatives to address the need to

develop a sense of community and respond to the changes in demographics toward a younger
community

These initiatives included

Creating a town center in the City
Providing an elementary school to serve the City
Constructing a community recreation center to provide programs for all age groups

Our Community Recreation Center was dedicated in February of2003 The25000square foot

facility is located in a park like setting on the waterfront and includes a full size gym meeting rooms

computer lab exercise and aerobic facilities and classrooms At this time there are2100 members
that belong to the Center and enjoy the programs and activities that are provided at the facility This
has surpassed our original estimates This truly has met the goal of providing a focal point for
residents to meet and enjoy their leisure time

ii
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The August 25 2003 opening of Avenrura Charter Elementary School ACES represented
several milestones in the Citys short history The School was the first school within the Citys
boundaries and the ftrst municipal sponsored charter school in MiamiDade County The School
opened at full capacity with 600 students and needed a lottery in most grades due to the overwhelming
number ofapplications The second year was equally successful The 200405budget includes funds
to construct an expansion of the school to allow middle school attendance in grades 6 7 and 8 in
furure years

The City Commission has approved plans for Phase I of the Town Center development on the
LoehmannsPlaza site Phase I which began in 2004 included demolition of six buildings in the
southeast corner of the site and construction of two residential buildings one eleven stories high and
one seven stories high connected by a four story parking garage with a total of 500 condominium
units and retail space on the ground floor of the north elevation

To support the redevelopment ofthe Town Center the City Commission approved comprehensive
plan amendments and rezonings to permit medium density residential development on NE 188th
Street Construction of the first three condominium buildings on the street Upton Marian Lofts with

216 units The Atrium at Aventura with 192 units and Eastside at Avenrura with 39 units began in
2004 All of these developments will include a public walkway along the canal to the north and south
ofNE 188th Street

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Accounting Control

Management ofthe City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements ip conformity with generally accepted accounting principles Internal control is designed
to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that 1 the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived and 2 the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework We believe that the Citys
internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper
recording of fmancial transactions

Budgetary Control

In accordance with City Ordinance appropriations are legally controlled at the department level
Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders and other commitments for the expendirure
of monies are recorded in the accounting records was utilized throughout the fiscal year

Overview of Financial Activity

The accompanying financial statements reflect that the City has continued to expand its services
to meet the demands of its residential and business communities A summary of the major financial
activities is included in the ManagementsDiscussion and Analysis Section of this report

iii



Fund Balances

Fund balances represent the accumulation of resources from prior years which are available to
fund furure years budgets and for use as a reserve for unexpected events in the furure The fund
balance at September 30 2004 for the General Fund is approximately 126 million representing
approximately 35 of the 200412005 budget A major portion of this amount 92million is used
to fund a capital reserve account in the 200412005 budget The capital reserve account may be
allocated by the City Commission to fund budget needs in the 20042005 or later fiscal years

f

The fund balances in each special revenue debt service and capital projects fund are designated
for use for the specific legal purposes of each fund r

Retirement Programs

The City contributes to three defined contribution pension plans based on employee classifications
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401a The plans currently cover all full
time employees of the City Under these plans the City contributes between 135and 18 of each

employees salary depending on the employee classification There are no employee contributions
Employer contributions for the fiscal year ended September 30 2004 wereapproximately 382000

f

A defined contribution pension plan provides pension benefits in return for services rendered
provides an individual account for each participant and specifies how contributions to the individuals

account are to be determined instead ofspecifying the amount ofbenefits the individual is to receive
Under a defined contribution pension plan the benefits a participant will receive depend solely on

the amount contributed to the participantsaccount the returns earned on investments on those

contributions and forfeitures of other participants benefits that may be reallocated to such

participantsaccount

In order to encourage employees to supplement the defined contribution plan a deferred

compensation program is also available to all fulltime employees Under this program employees
may voluntarily elect to defer a portion of their salary to future years Both programs are

administered by the ICMA Retirement Corporation under a trust agreement The plan assets are

separate and the City does not exercise control over the assets Therefore the assets liabilities and
transactions are not included in the Citys financial statements

I
j

r

l

As discussed in the Notes to the Financial Statements the City through collective bargaining with

the Cityspolice officers agreed to establish a defined benefit retirement program covering all sworn

officers This new program was effective October 1 2003 and was funded by acombination of City
and employee contributions and state insurance premium taxes

Financing Programs and Debt Administration

The City currently has three outstanding longterm debt issues At September 30 2004 the

principal balance outstanding totaled 37155000

The Florida Municipal Loan Council loan is secured solely by a covenant to budget and

appropriate the required debt service payments each year The loan is structured the same as a serial
bond issue with principal payments on April 1st and interest payments on April 1st and October 1st
of each year with the final maturity on April 1 2029 Debt service requirements average
approximately 135 million per year over the thirtyyear life of the bonds Interest rates range from
32 to5125 depending on maturity date

I
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The Series 2000 Revenue Bonds are bank qualified debt secured solely by a covenant to budget
and appropriate the required debt service each year This loan is structured the same as a serial bond

issue with annual principal payments due on October 1st of each year and semiannual interest
payments on April 1st and Oçtober 1st Debt service requirements averageapproximately 510000
per year over the twenty year life of the obligation The interest rate is504

The Series 2002 Revenue Bonds were financed through the Florida Intergovernmental Finance
Commission The loan is secured solely by the covenant to budget and appropriate the required debt
service payments each year This loan is strucrured the same as a serial bond issue with principal
payments due August 1st and interest payments due on February 1st and August 1st of each year
Interest rates range from 25 to 50 during the thirty year term of the financing Debt Service

requirements are approximately 440000 per year

Cash Management

All funds other than restricted cash held by fiscal agents resulting from borrowing transactions
are centrally managed through the use of a pooled cash account During the year all funds in the
pooled cash accounts were held in an interest bearing checking account collateralized through the
State Treasury Public Depository program or with the Florida State Board of Administration SBA
investment pooL The checking account and SBA investment pool are fully insured and immediately
available and considered as cash and cash equivalents

With the exclusion of accounts held by fiscal agents the total portfolio ranged from 7 to 12
million The portfolio averaged approximately 10 million with interest earnings of approximately
113000 resulting in an average rate of rerum of 11

Risk Management

The City is insured with the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust for liability property and workers

compensation coverage The liability limit under the policy is 5000000

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

In accordance with Section 11453a4 Florida Starutes and Article I Section 411 of the

City Charter the City engaged the firm of Keefe McCullough Co LLP Certified Public
Accountants to perform the independent audit of the Citys accounts and records The independent
auditors reports are included in the Financial and Other Reports of Independent Auditors sections

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada GFOA awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Avenrura for its

comprehensive annual financial report CAFR for the fiscal year ended September 30 2003 The
Certificate ofAchievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest
standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform
to program standards The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and

applicable legal requirements

v



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only We believe our current

report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements and we are

submitting it to GFOA

Acknowledgments r
The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the

efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Support Services Department We

express our appreciation to all members of the Department who assisted and contributed to its

preparation We also wish to thank the Mayor and City Commissioners for their interest and support
in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive
manner

Respectfully submitted

Harry M Kilgore CPA

Dtm
City Ma

n
j

1

l

L

t

L

vi



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
CITY OFFICIALS
September 30 2004

CITY COMMISSION

Jeffrey M Perlow Mayor
lev Aurebach

Jay R Beskin
Ken Cohen

Bob Diamond
Manny Grossman

Harry Holzberg

CITY MANAGER

Eric M Soroka

DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS

Harry M Kilgore Finance Support Services
Robert M Sherman Community Services

Teresa M Soroka CMC City Clerk
Thomas E Ribel Police Chief
Joanne Carr Planning Director

Mariano Fernandez Building DirectorOfficial
Dr Katherine Bray Murphy Charter School Principal

CITY ATTORNEYS

Weiss Serota Helfman Pastoriza Guedes Cole Boniske PA

CITY AUDITORS

Keefe McCullough Co LLP
Certified Public Accountants

vii



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
CITY GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

September 30 2004

l

r
r

J�SlDENTS

r
f
t

f
I

I

CITY COMMISSION

CITY ATTORNEY

n
Ii

I I I I

Public Safety Community Finance Support Community
Department Development Services Services

Denartment Denartment Denartment

Police Planning FinanceAccounting Community Facilit
Patrol Zoning Purchasing ParksBeautificatio
Community Relations Building Inspections Risk Management ROWMedian Mai
Criminal Investigations Code Enforcement Information Management Public Works
Traffic Enforcement Economic Development Personnel Mass Transit

Emergency Preparedness Occupational Licenses Special Events

RecreationCultura

Charter School

CITY MANAGER

Ad
I

mmlstatlOn
BudgetPeparation
Custome Service

Cp

TOO

CITY CLERK

n
Legal Services Minutes

Records Retention
Clerical Support

l

Ie

ies

n

ntenance

l

viii



Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial

Reporting
Presented to

City of Aventura
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

September 302003

A Certificate ofAchievement for Excellence in Financial

Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association ofthe United States and Canada to

government units and public employee retirement

systems whose comprehensive annual financial

reports CAFRs achieve the highest
standards in government accounting

and financial reporting

JPq0
President

Executive Director

ix



FINANCIAL SECTION



MANAGEMENTS
DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

NOT COVERED BY INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT



KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLICACCOUNTAITS

CHRISTOPHER L COLLINScPA
CHARLES KRUMPFCPA

ISRAELI GOMEZ CPA

KEVIN RROACHcPA

6550 NORTH FEDERAL HIGHWAY
SUITE 410

FORT LAUDERDALE FLORIDA 33308

9547710896

FAX 954 9389353

EMAilkmc@kmccpacom

JOHN RKEEFE CPA IOSEPH DLEOCPA
JOHNE McCULLOUGHCPA lRETIRED WILLIAM G BENSON cPA

THOMAS T CARPENTER CPA BRIAN O PINNELL CPA

PAUL B SNEIDERcPAIRETIREDI KENNETH G SMITHCPA

SnVEN HWOODS CPA LOUIS R PROlETIOCPA

DAVIDT WILLIAMSCPA CYNTHlAL CALVERTCPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor City Commission and City Manager
City of Avenrura Florida
Aventura Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofgovernmental activities businesstype
activities major funds and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe City ofAvenrura Florida
the City as of and for the year ended September 30 2004 and the balance sheet and statement of
revenues expenditures and changes in fund balance for the Charter School Fund as of and for the

year ended June 30 2004 which collectively comprise the Citysbasic financial statements as listed
in the table ofcontents These fmancial statements are the responsibility of the Citysmanagement
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fmancial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the
overall basic financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion

In our opinion the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material
respects the respective financial positions of the governmental activities businesstype activities
major funds and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Aventura Florida at

September 30 2004 and the Charter School Fund at June 30 2004 and the respective changes in
financial positions and cash flows where applicable and the respective budgetary comparison for the
General Fund and Charter School Fund thereof for the year then ended in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated

February 2 2005 on our consideration of the City of Aventuras internal control over financial

reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws regulations contracts and
grants That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit



City of Aventura Florida

ManagementsDiscussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary information required by GASB We applied certain limited procedures which
consist principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information However we did not audit the information and
express no opinion thereon

r
i

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of the City ofAvenrura Florida taken as a whole The combining and individual fund statements and
schedules as listed in the table of contents are also presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not arequired part of the basic financial statements Allsuch information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and in our opinion is
fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole

The introductory other financial information and statistical sections of this report have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
accordingly we express no opinion on them

U TJL i LLP
KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP

r

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 2 2005
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2004

Our discussion and analysis of City of Aventura Floridas the City financial performance
provides an overview of the Citys financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30 2004
Please read it in conjunction with the Citys financial statements which immediately follow this
discussion

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following are the highlights of financial activity for the fiscal year ending September 30
2004

The Citys total net assets exceeded its liabilities at September 30 2004 by 41 857177
net assets Of this amount 36444336 related to governmental activities and
5214841 related to businesstypeactivities

The Citys revenues for governmental activities excluding transfers were 30217116
expenses for governmental activities were 26152645

Revenues for the Citys businesstypeactivities excluding transfers were 828754
expenses totaled 147242

As of the close of the fiscal year the Citysgovernmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of 19041613 a increase of 2154432 compared with the prior year

The Citys bonded debt decreased by 900000 all of which was for governmental
activities

The total fair value of the Citys investments cash and cash equivalents at September 30
2004 was 20351788 Interest rates continued their decline over the fiscal year Interest

earnings for the General Fund were less than the amount received in fiscal year 2003

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Citysbasic financial
statements The basic financial statements are comprised of three components 1 governmentwide
financial statements 2 fund financial statements and 3 notes to the financial statements This report
also contains other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves

Governmentwidefinancial statements The governmentwide financial statements include
the statement of net assets and statement ofactivities They are designed to provide a broad overview
of the City as a whole similar to private sector fmancial statements The statement ofnet assets shows
the total assets and liabilities for the City with the difference being net assets The change in net assets

over time may be an indicator of the Citys financial health The statement of activities provides a
breakdown of revenues and expenditures by functionsie those generally supported by taxes and

intergovernmental activities Those functions that are primarily funded through user fees and charges
are identified as businesstype activities In Aventura the latter includes the Stormwater Utility
operations

The governmentwide financial statements can be found on pages 9 and 10 of this report

Fund financial statements A fund is agrouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives The City
categorizes funds into three basic fund types governmental funds proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds

3



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September302004

Governmental funds beginning on page 11 are used to account for essentially the same

functions reported as governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements However
unlike the governmentwide financial statements governmental fund financial statements focus on

nearterm inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as balances of spendable resources

available at the end of the fiscal year Such information may be useful in evaluating a governments
nearterm financing requirements

r

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governmentwide
financial statements it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements

By doing so readers may better understand the longterm impact of the Citysnearterm financing
decisions Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of

revenues expenditures and changes in fund balances provide reconciliations to facilitate this

comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities

r

The City maintains fifteen individual governmental funds Of this number the General Fund
Charter School Fund Series 2000 Capital Construction Fund and Series 2002 Capital Construction
Fund Charter School Building Construction Fund are considered major funds and thus are reflected

separately in the fund financial statements All the other governmental funds are combined for

presentation purposes as nonmajor funds

Proprietary Fund beginning on page 19 is the equivalent of businesstype activities in the

governmentwidestatements It includes the Stormwater Utility Fund The City operates no Internal
Service Funds

Fiduciary Fund beginning on page 22 represents trust responsibilities of the City and is
restricted in purpose for the benefit of parties outside the City Fiduciary Funds are not reflected in

the governmentwidefinancial statements because they do not represent discretionary assets of the City
and thus are not available to support the Citysown programs The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds

Notes to the financial statements are integral to a complete understanding of both the

governmentwide and fund financial statements The notes to the financial statements can be found

on pages 2440of this report

Other information

In addition to the basic fmancial statements and accompanying notes this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the Citysprogress in funding its obligation
to provide pension benefits to its employees This required supplementary information is found on

pages 4142 of this report

This report also presents certain other financial information concerning the Cityscombining
financial statements and budgetary schedules Other financial information begins on page 43 of this

report

GOVERNMENTWIDEFINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier net assets may serve over time to be a useful indicator of a governmental
entitys fmancial position In the case of the City of Aventura assets exceeded liabilities by
41857177 at the close of the year

4



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2004

The largest portion ofthe Citys net assets 67 reflects its investment in capital assetseg
land buildings improvements other than buildings infrastructure machinery and equipment less

any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding The City uses these capital assets

to provide services to citizens consequently these assets are not available for future spending
Although the Citys investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities

The table below summarizes the Citys net assets for the past two fiscal years

City of Avenrura Florida
Net Assets

Governmental Activities BusinessTvneActivities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Current and

other assets 23181214 20761992 63880 220836 23245094 20541156
Capital assets net 55092756 53399308 5350598 5350003 60443354 58749311

Total assets 78273970 74 161300 5414478 5129167 83 688448 79290467

Oilier liabilities 4691384 4370468 1637 934 4693021 4371402
Longterm liabilities

outstanding 37138250 37813249 37 138 250 37813249

Total liabilities 41829634 42183717 1637 934 41 831271 42184651

Invested in capital assets
net of related debt 22471893 19880605 5350598 5350003 27822491 25230608
Restricted 1872770 5214557 1872770 5214557
Unrestricted 12099673 6882421 62243 221 770 12 161916 6660 651

Total net

assets 36444336 31977583 5412841 5128233 41857177 37105816

Governmental activities Governmental activities increased the Citys net assets by
4466753thereby accounting for 94 of the total growth in the net assets of the City as reflected

in the table below

City of Avenrura Florida

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities BusinessTvpe Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

REVENUES

Program revenues

Charges for services 3687394 3589470 826199 820926 4513593 4410396
Operating grants and

contributions 4099084 164260 4099084 164260
Capital grants and
contributions 401076 14523 650000 401076 664523

General revenues

Ad valorem taxes 10143246 9075096 10143246 9075096
Utility Service taxes 5460119 5397011 5460119 5397011
Franchise fees 2185155 1875199 2185155 1875199
Intergovernmental

revenues 3203912 2861600 3203912 2861600
Investment earnings 174983 246216 2555 3262 177538 249478
Oilier 862147 862147 161045

Total revenues 30217116 23384420 828754 1474188 31045870 24858608
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2004

Governmental Activities BusinessTvoe Activities Total

r2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
EXPENSES
General government 2539000 2287133 2539000 2287133
Public safety 11548304 10262009 11548304 10262009
Community services 8395691 4822153 8395691 4822153
Nondeparlmental 1839320 1614238 1839320 1614238
Debt service 1830330 1785364 1830330 1785364
Stormwater Utility 147242 125727 147242 125727

Total expenses 26 152645 20770897 147232 125727 26299887 20896624

Increase in
net assets
before transfers 4064471 2613523 681512 1348461 4745983 3961984

Transfers 402282 567037 396904 567037 5378

Increase in

net assets 4466753 3180560 284608 781424 4751361 3961984

Net assets at beginning r

of year 31977583 28797023 5128233 4346 809 37105816 33143832

Net assets at end of year 36444336 31977583 5412841 5128233 41857177 37105816

Businesstypeactivities In the businesstypeactivities revenues comprisedmainly ofservice
fees 99 exceeded expenses for stormwater utility by 681512

ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTSFUNDS

The City ofAventura uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstratecompliance with finance

related legal requirements

The fund fmancial statements for governmental funds provide information on the nearterm

inflows outflows and balances of spendable resources Such information is useful in assessing the

Citysfinancing requirements In particular unreserved fund balance may be useful as an indicator
of a governments net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year

Overall governmental funds ended the year with a total balance of 19041613 including
14449940 unreserved Compared to the prior year total governmental fund balances increased

by approximately 22 million while unreserved balances decreased by approximately 12 million
The major factor resulting in the decrease in unreserved balance was the encumbrance of

approximately 40million for construction ofthe expansion of Aventura City of Excellence School
to allow for the addition of grades 6 through 8

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City and had a total balance at September
302004 of 12649983 ofwhich 8089508was unreserved but designated for subsequent years
expenditures

The significant highlights of the General Fund activity include

Ad valorem taxes increased by approximately 11 million as a result of new

construction and increased in assessed value of existing property The ad valorem
rate remained unchanged at2227 mils the same rate as was in effect each of the
seven prior years

l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2004

Investment earnings decreased because ofthe continued downward trend in interest
rates

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to

expenditures for particular purposes One of the Special Revenue Funds is the Charter School

Operating Fund This fund is used to account for the operation of the Aventura City of Excellence
School The amounts shown are for the state mandated fiscal year of July 1 2003 through June 30
2004 This was the first year of acrual operation of the school Fund balance increased by
approximately 250000 for the year All revenues were intergovernmental state revenues which
were passed through the Miami Dade District School Board pursuant to state law Other special
revenue fund highlights for the year were the increase in police impact fees by approximately
111000 and in park impact fees by 584000 These amounts were received because building

permits were issued primarily for new residential units These amounts will be used to fund capital
outlay costs for the police and expansion of the Citysparks system in future years

Debt Service Funds account for the payment of principal and interest on the Citys
governmental activities debt There were no new bond issues and the City retired 900000 in bonds

during the year

Capital Project Funds account for the expenditures for major non General Fund supported
capital projects The major funds balance at year end was approximately 41 million which will
used in furure years to acquire land for expansion of the Citys park system

The Citysproprietary fund is presented in more detail in the fund statements but represents
the same activities reflected in the businesstypeactivities In fiscal year 2004 the Stormwater Utility
Fund had operating income of 826199 and operating expenses were 147242 Net assets for
Stormwater Utility increased by 284608

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund revenues were 416582 more than the final budget projections Expendirures
were 12 142651 less than final appropriations

The General Fund budget was amended by a total of 2086600 Of this amount 434000
was to recognized grant revenue and expendirures notoriginally budgeted 496000 was to recognize
building permit revenue and associated costs being greater than anticipated and 99000 was added
to cover additional costs of police services for extra duty detail which are covered by revenues from
the companies who request service In addition the capital reserve was increased by 710000 to

recognized fund balance at September 30 2003 being greater than projected when the budget was

prepared There were also various other budget adjustments and revisions to accommodate unforeseen

expenses during the year including some umeimbursed costs of Hurricane Charley and Frances

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets The Citys investment in capital assets for its governmental and businesstype
activities as of September 30 2004 amounts to 60443354net of accumulated depreciation

7



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2004

City of Aventura Florida
Capital Assets net of accumulated depreciation r

I

Governmental Activities
2004 2003

BusinessTvDe Activities
2004 2003

Total
2004 2003

Land

Buildings
Improvements other than

buildings
Infrastruclure
Fumilure machinery
and equipment

Construction in progress

14592603 14592603
26708718 27454840

14592603 14592603
26708718 27454840 r

Total

4115293 4035712 4115293 4035712
5912349 4285012 5350598 5350003 11262947 9635015

3665015 3031141 3665015 3031141
98778 98778

55092756 53399308 5350598 5350003 60443354 58749311

Debt Administration At the end of the fiscal year the Citys longterm debt totaled

37155000 All was governmental activity debt payable from future nonadvalorem tax revenues

Readers desiring detailed information on capital assets and longterm debt activity are referred
to pages 34 through 36 of the notes to fmancial statements

r
i

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARSBUDGETS AND RATES

The State of Florida by constirution does not have a state personal income tax and therefore
the State operates primarily using sales gasoline and corporate income taxes Local governments
cities counties and school boards primarily rely on property and a limited array of permitted other
taxes utilities taxes and franchise fees and occupational license as well as intergovernmental revenues

for their governmental activities For businesstype and certain governmental activities construction
services and recreational programs the user pays a related fee or charge associated with the service

The adopted operating budget for fiscal year 2005 totals 38460828million 12 lower than
the final operating budget for fiscal year 2004 This decrease was because Capital Projects funds

resulting from the various financings were fully expended in the 200304fiscal year The General
Fund budget for fiscal year 2004 is 36195053 million 7 higher than fiscal year 2004 The

millage rate was the same for the eighth consecutive year and Stormwater rates remained constant

l

L

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Avenrura s

finances for all those with an interest in the Citys fmances Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Financial Support Services Director City of Aventura

I
l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30 2004

Primary Government

Governmental BusinessType
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9546544 285686 9832230
Receivables net of allowance for uncollectibles 617996 617996
Due from other governments 951962 78919 1030881
Prepaid expenses 409562 409562
Deposits 380000 380000
Inventory 14049 14049
Internal balances 300725 300725
Capital assets

Nondepreciable 14691381 14691381
Depreciable net of accumulated depreciation 40401375 5350598 45751973

Restricted cash cash equivalents and investments 10519558 10519558
Bond issue costs net 440818 440818

Total assets 78273970 5414478 83688448

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1074397 1637 1076034
Accrued liabilities 2003517 2003517
Retainage payable 43034 43034
Unearned revenues 446951 446951
Accrued interest payable 92012 92012
Due within one year
Compensated absences payable 101473 101473
Bonds payable 930000 930000

Due in more than one year
Compensated absences payable 913250 913250
Bonds payable 36225000 36225000

Total liabilities 41829634 1637 41831271

COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES Note 10

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets net of
related debt 22471893 5350598 27822491

Restricted for
Police purposes 686696 686696
Capital improvements 1186074 1186074

Unreserved 12099673 62243 12161916

Total net assets 36444336 5412841 41857177

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY
OF
A
VENTURA
FLORIDA

STATEMENT
OF
ACTIVITIES

For
the
Year
Ended
September
302004

Net
Expense
Revenue
and

Program
Revenues

Chans
in
Net
Assets

Operating

Capital

Primary
Govermnent

Charges
for

Grants
and

Grants
and

Govermnental

BusinessType

FUNCfIONSIPROGRAMS

Expenses

Services

Contrihutions
˙ontributiQ

Activities

Activities

Total

Primary
govennnento Governmental

activitie
General

government

2539000

1057776

1481224

1481224

Public
safety

11548304

2402106

10936

145076

8990186

8990186

Community
services

8395691

227512

3967571

256000

3944608

3944608

Nondepartmental

1839320

120577

1718743

1718743

Interest
on
longtenD
debt

1785630

1785630

1785630

Other
debt
service

costs

44700

44700

44
700

Total
government

activities

26152645

3687394

4

099
084

401
076

07965091

17965091

Businesstype
activitie

Stonnwater
utility

147242

826
199

678
957

678957

Total
businesstype
activities

147242

826199

678957

678957

Total
primary

government

26299887

4513593

4099084

401076

07
965
091

678957

07
286
134

General
revenues

Taxe Ad
valorem
taxes

10
I43246

10143246

Utility
service

taxes

5460119

5460119

Franchise
fees

2185155

2185155

Intergovernmental

3203912

3203912

Impact
fees

754954

754954

Interest
income

174983

2555

177538

Miscellaneous

107193

107193

Chaner
School
transfer
Note
7

5378

5378

Tcansfers

396904

396904

Total
general

revenues
and
tTansfers

22431844

094
349

22037495

Change
in
net
assets

4466753

284608

4751361

Net
assets
at

beginning
of

year

31977
583

5128233

37105816

Net
assets
at

eod
of

year

36
444
336

5412841

leU7
I

77

The
accompanying

notes
10
the
financial

statements
are
an

integral
parI

of
these

statements
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CITY OF A VENTURA FLORIDA
BALANCESHEETGOYERNMENTALFUNDS

September 30 2004

Series 2002

Capital
Construction

Series 2000 Fund Charter
Charter Capital School Other Tolal

General School Construction Building Governmemal Governmemal
Fund Fund Fund Construction Funds

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalems 7059082 532887 1954575 9546544
Reslricted cash cash

equivalents and
investments 3701222 6231836 586500 10519558

Accounts receivable 545801 72195 617996
Deposits 380000 380000
Inventory 14049 14049
Due from other funds 6896909 52493 28051 6977453
Due from other governmenls 691314 129764 821078
Prepaid expenditures 409 562 409562

Total assets 15616717 605082 4081222 84329 2698890 29286240

Maior Governmental Funds

Nonmajor
Governmemal

LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable 1001772 13962 58663 1074397
Accrued liabilities 1446926 196777 359814 2003517
Retainage payable 43034 43034
Unearned revenue 446951 446951
Due to other funds 28051 6275845 372832 6676728

Total liabilities 2966734 210739 6275 845 791309 10244627

Fund balances
Reserved for
Debt service 31198 31198
Encumbrances 4136864 4136864
Invenlory 14049 14049
Prepaid expenditures 409562 409562

Unreserved
Designated for subsequenl
yearsexpenditures in
General Fund 8089508 8089508
Special Revenue Funds 394343 1872770 2267113
Capital Project Funds 4081222 8484 1ll4093319

Total fund balances 12649983 394343 4081222 8484 1907581 19041 613

Total liabilities
and fund balances 15616717 605082 4081222 6284329 2698890 29286240

As of June 30 2004

The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30 2004

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS ARE DIFFERENT BECAUSE

Total fund balances of governmental funds in the balance sheet page 11

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

The cost of capital assets is 63408445
Accumulated depreciation is 8315689

Intergovernmental receivable is not available to pay for current

period expenditures and therefore is deferred in the funds

Longterm liabilities including bonds payable are not due

and payable in the current period and therefore are not

reported in the funds

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES PAGE 9

i
J

fl

I

19041613

I

55092756

130884

37820917 n
36444336

l

r

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements

L
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30 2004

Nonmajor
Governmental

Major Governmental Funds
Senes 2002

Capital
ConslrucJion

Series2000 Fund Chaner
Charter Capital School Other Total

General School Conslruction Buildin Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund ConstructlOn Funds Funds

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes 10143246 10143246
UJility service taxes 5460119 5460119
Franchise fees 2185155 2185155
Intergovernmental revenues 2406350 3934894 1322064 7663308
Licenses and permits 2146913 2146913
Charges for services 1099321 1099321
Fines and forfeitures 218757 132941 351698
1mpacI fees 754954 754954
Interest income 72654 23014 38535 40780 174983
Developer contribuJions 85842 85842
Miscellaneous 134768

Total revenues 23953125 3934894 23014 38535 2250739 30200307

EXPENDITURES
Current
General governmenl 2371236 2371236
Public safety 10591935 2518 10594453
Community services 4107849 3191751 195545 7495145
Nondepartmental 1365719 1365719

Caital outlay 3269255 35109 17890 30051 553570 3905875
De t service
Principal retirement 900000 900000
Interest 1786797 1786797
Trustee fees

Total expenditures 21705994 3 226 860 17890 30051 3467362 28448157

Excess deficiency
of revenues

over expenditures 2247131 708034 5124 8484 0216623 1752150

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES USES

2702849 3687963Transfers in 985114
Transfers out 2254886 458185 572610 3285681

Total other financing
2130239 402282sources uses 0269772 458 185

Net change
in fund
balances 977359 249849 5124 8484 913616 2154432

FUND BALANCES AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR
as previously disclosed 11599485 144494 4076098 993965 16814042

Prior period adjustment
Note 14 73139 73139

FUND BALANCES AT
END OF YEAR 12649983 394343 4081222 8484 1907581 19041613

For he year ended June 30 2004

The accompanying notes to he fmancial statements are an integral part of hese statemenls
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30 2004

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS PAGE 13

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures
However in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the

governmental funds but the repayment reduces longterm
liabilities in the statement of net assets

Principal payments

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not

require the use of current financial resources and therefore are

not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current fmancial resources are not reported as revenues

in the funds

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES PAGE 10

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements

14
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2154432

I
I

1693448 f1

900000
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16809

4466753 l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2004

Actual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary
Original Final Basis Variance

REVENUES
Ad Valorem taxes

Current 10009043 10009043 10054175 45132
Delinquent 7000 7000 89071 82071
Utility service taxes

Electric 2935000 3061000 3068941 7941
Telecommunication 1900000 1900000 1838738 61262
Water 460000 460000 521788 61788
Gas 35000 35000 30652 4348

Franchise fees
Electric 1840000 1820000 1822466 2466
Gas 45000 45000 31013 13987
Sanitation 240000 240000 303354 63354
Cable 9000 9000
Towing 12000 12000 19322 7322

Total taxes 17483043 17589043 17788520 199477

Intergovernmental revenues

Federal grants 264000 253312 10688
State and local grants 4000 174000 226112 52112
Alcoholic beverage licenses 6000 6000 17825 11825
State revenue sharing 218000 255000 284964 29964
Half cent sales tax 1450000 1500000 1580075 80075
County occupational licenses 20000 20000 44062 24062

Total intergovernmental
revenues 1698 000 2219000 2406350 187350

Licenses and permits
City occupational licenses 665000 698000 611576 86424
Building permits 1000000 1496000 1364303 131697
Certificates of occupancy 132784 132784
Engineering 10000 38000 38250 250

Total licenses and

permits 1675000 2232000 2146913 85087

Charges for services
Certificate of use fees 5000 5000 5040 40

Development review fees 30000 30000 69051 39051
Recreationcultural events 258000 258000 227512 30488
Police services 787500 886500 797718 88782
Other 2000 2000 2000

Total charges for
1082500 1181500 1099321 82179servIces

15



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
ST ATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

continued
For the Year Ended September 30 2004

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Budgetary
Basis

Fines and forfeitures

County court fees
Code violation fines

160000
5000

160000
5000

218282
475

Total fines and
forfeitures 165000165000 218757

Other
Interest income

Developer contributions
Miscellaneous

100000

50000

100000

50000

72654
85842
134768

293264Total other 150000

22253 543 23953125

150000

23536543Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
City Commission
Personal services
Operating

City Manager
Personal services

Operating
Capital outlay

59593
51800

57497
47052

59593
51800

495692
115050
4000

510792
113950
4000

508126
113780
3350

Finance support services
Personal services

Operating
Capital outlay

Legal
Operating

803414
254720
102989

829041
270720
102989

808652
270480
93536

326000233000 325514

City Clerk
Personal services

Operating
Capital outlay

170019
71700
3000

151619
67100
3000

168886
71249
2086

Total general
government 25136042341977 2470208

16

n
I

Variance
i

I

58282
4525 f

53757

27346
85842
84768

143264

f
l

416582

2096
4748

l

L
2666

170
650

I

20389
240

9453

486

1133
451
914

43396 L



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

continued
For the Year Ended September302004

Acrual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary
Original Final Basis Variance

Public safety
Police
Personal services 7744507 7900007 7881688 18319
Operating 930744 1059244 1054437 4807
Capital outlay 638956 774956 663858 111 098

Community development
Personal services 639651 609051 592360 16691
Operating 862900 1063500 1063450 50

Capital outlay 35650 35650 23125 12525

Total public safety 10852408 11442408 11278918 163490

Community services
Personal services 662786 686786 683763 3023
Operating 3161030 3425030 3424086 944

Capital outlay 5263139 5263139 2462042 2801097

Total community
9086955 9374955 6569891 2805064servIces

Nondepartmental
Operating 1049400 1376400 1365719 10681
Capital outlay 8431305 9141278 21258 9120020

Total nondepartmental 9480705 10517678 1386977 9130701

Total expenditures 31762045 33848645 21705994 12142651

Excess deficiency of
revenues over

expendirures 9508502 00312102 2247131 12559233

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES USES
Transfers in 969514 985114 985114
Transfers out 2248886 2260886 2254886 6000
Appropriated fund balance 10787874 11587874 01587874

Total other financing
sources uses 9508502 10312102 0269772 01581874

Net change in
fund balance 977 359 977 359

The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
ST ATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL I

CHARTER SCHOOL FUND

For the Year Ended June 302004

n
Original Final
Budget Budget Acrual Variance

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues 3451523 3470523 3608213 137690
Charges for services 155340 205340 184854 20486 íl

I

Miscellaneous 10000 47604 135018 87414
Interest income 6809 6809

f1
Total revenues 3616863 3723467 3934894 211 427

EXPENDITURES
Personal services 1979772 2057772 1930842 126930
Operating 1304000 1317004 1260909 56095
Capital outlay 35000 35000 35109 009

J

3409776 182916Total expendirures 3318772 3226860 l

Excess of revenues 11over expendirures 298091 313691 708034 394343

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES USES
Transfers out 442585 458185 458185

Total other fmancing L
sources uses 442585 458185 458185

Net change in
fund balance 144494 144494 249849 394343

FUND BALANCE July 1 2003 144494 144494 144494

FUND BALANCE j

June 30 2004 394343 394343

l
The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30 2004

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

Total net assets

285686
78919

5350598

5715203

1637
300725

302362

5350598
62243

5412841

Noncurrent assets

Capital assets net

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets net of
related debt
Unrestricted

The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
ST ATEMENT OF OPERATING REVENUES EXPENSES

AND CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended September 302004

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services 826199

147242

678957

2555

681512

396904

284608

5128233

5412841

OPERATING EXPENSES

Depreciation expense

Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest income

Income before transfers

Transfers to General Fund

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended September 30 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers users and other

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

827 872

827 872

396904

430968

147837

283131

2555

2555

285686

285686

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAP1TAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out to other fund

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED F1NANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income

Net cash provided by operating activities

678957

147242

971
702

148915

827872

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease in due from other governments
Increase in accounts payable

Total adjustments

The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN FUND

September 30 2004
Ii

n
I

ASSETS
Due from ICMA City of Aventura 401aPlan
Accounts receivable state premium tax

Contributions receivable

Employer
Employees

Total assets

1612458
50866

583892 I

250850 834742

2498066
f

11143

11143 r

I

2486923 I
I

LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS

l

f
I

The accompanying notes to fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
L
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN FUND
For the Year Ended September 30 2004

ADDITIONS
ICMA City of Aventura 401a Plan rollover
Contributions
Employer
Employees

State of Florida premium tax

Net increase

1471374

583892
253776
50866

2359908

136980
4104

141084

2500992

1l143
2926

14069

2486923

Total contributions

Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value ofICMA City of Avenrura 401aPlan
Interest income

Total investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS

Legal fees

Employee contribution refunds

Total deductions

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS October 1 2003

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS September 30 2004 2486923

The accompanying notes to fmancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Aventura Florida the City was incorporated in November 1995 The City
operates under a CommissionManager form of government and provides the following services as

authorized by its charter public safety highways and streets culrure and recreation public works and
stormwater management The financial statements ofthe City have been prepared in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles GAAP as applied to governmental units The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board GAS B is the accepted standardsetting body for

establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles The more significant of the

Citysaccounting policies are described below

Reporting Entity

r

I

The fmancial statements were prepared in accordance with Statement No 14 The Financial

Reporting Entity which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the fmancial reporting
entity The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected officials
are accountable to their constituents for their actions One of the objectives of financial reporting is
to provide users of financial statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of elected
officials The financial reporting entity consists of the City organizations for which the City is

financially accountable and other organizations for which the narure and significance of their

relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entitys financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete The City is financially accountable for a component unit
if it appoints a voting majority of the organizationsgoverning board and it is able to impose its will
on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits

to or impose specific financial burdens on the City Based upon the application ofthese criteria there
were no organizations that met the criteria described above

l

Governmentwideand Fund Financial Statements

The governmentwide fmancial statementsie the statement of net assets and the statement

of activities report information on aU activities ofthe City For the most part the effect of interfund

activity has been removed from these statements Governmental activities which normally are

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues are reported separately from businesstype
activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for services

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues Direct expenses are those expenses that are

clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment Program revenues include 1 charges to

customers or applicants who purchase use or directly benefit from goods services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2 grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operation or capital requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and other items not

properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds proprietary funds and

fiduciary funds even through the latter are excluded from the governmentwide financial statements

Major individual governmental funds are reportedas separate columns in the fund financial statements

Measurement Focus Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The governmentwide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting as are the proprietary fund financial statements
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred regardless
of the timing of related cash flows Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which

they are levied Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current fmancial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting Revenues are recognized as soon

as they are both measurable and available Revenues are considered to be available when they are

collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe current period
For this purpose the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty
days of the end of the current fiscal period Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is

incurred as under accrual accounting However debt service expenditures as well as expendirures
related to compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due

Taxes intergovernmental revenues and interest associated with the current fiscal period are

all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues ofthe current

fiscal period All other revenue items such as fines and forfeirures and licenses and permits are

considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City

The City reports the following major governmental funds

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City All general tax

revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contracrual

agreement to another fund are accounted for in this Fund

The A venrura Elementary Charter School Fund is used to account for revenues

and expenditures from the operations of the Charter SchooL

The Series 2000 Capital Construction Fund is used to fund capital
improvements from the proceeds of the Series 2000 Revenue bonds

The Series 2002 Capital Construction Fund Charter School Building
Construction is used to fund building construction for the Charter SchooL

The City reports the following major proprietary fund

The Stormwater Fund accounts for the operation ofthe City stormwater system

Additionally the government reports the following fund types

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources other than major capital projects requiring separate
accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the payment of principal
interest and other expendirures on longterm debt

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources segregated
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those
financed by enterprise operations

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the Police Officers
Pension Trust that accumulate resources for pension benefits to qualifying
police officers
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

The private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December

1 1989 generally are followed in both the governmentwideand proprietary fund financial statements

to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board Governments also have the option of following subsequent private
sector guidance for their businesstypeactivities and enterprise funds subject to the same limitation
The government has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from thegovrnmentwide
financial statements Amounts reported as program revenues include 1 charges to customers or

applicants for goods services or privileges provided and fines and forfeitures 2 operating grants
and contributions and 3 capital grants and contributions Internally dedicated resources are reported
as general revenues rather than as program revenues Likewise general revenues include all taxes

f

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary funds principal ongoing operations The principal
operating revenues of the proprietary fund are charges to customers for sales and services Operating
expenses for proprietary funds include the costs of sales and services administrative expenses and

depreciation on capital assets All revenues and expenses that do not meet this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues or expenses

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use it is the Citys policy to

use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed

f

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of 500 or more are reported at

historical cost or estrnated historical cost Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of
the date received Additions improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straightline basis over the following
estimated useful lives

Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Furniture machinery and equipment

2540years
2030years
2040years
320 years

GASB No 34 requires the City to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with
the September 30 2003 fiscal year Infrastructure assets include roads bridges underground pipe
other than related to utilities traffic signals etc These infrastrucrure assets are likely to be the

largest asset class of the City Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically
been reported in the financial statements The retroactive reporting of infrastrucrure is subject to an

extended implementation period and is rust effective for fiscal years ending in 2006 The City will

implement the retroactive infrastructure provisions by the fiscal year ending September 30 2007

Prepaid ExpensesExpendirures

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to a future accounting period and are

recorded as prepaid items in both governmentwide and fund fmancial statements L
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Compensated Absences Pavable

The Citys sick leave policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick pay
benefits Upon termination sick pay is paid out between 1050 based on length of service

The Citys vacation policy is that earned vacation is cumulative although limited to certain
maximums based on length of service

Accumulated compensated absences are recorded as expenses in the governmentwide and
proprietary fund financial statements when earned Expendirures for accumulated compensated
absences have been recorded in the governmental funds only in connectionwith terminated employees

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City maintains a pooled cash account for all funds This enables the City to invest large
amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to optimize earnings potential Cash and cash

equivalents represents the amount owned by each fund of the City

Cash and cash equivalents which consist of cash and shortterm investments with original
maturities of three months or less when purchased include cash on hand demand deposits and
investments with the State Board of Administration Investment Pool

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost lastinfirstout or market These amounts are

reserved in governmental fund fmancial statements

Unearned RŁvenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period Governmental funds
also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received but not yet
earned Unearned revenues at the governmentwide level arise only when the City receives resources

before it has a legal claim to them

Receivables and Pavables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lendingborrowing arranement
outstanding at the end of the year are referred to as either interfund receivablespayables Any
residual outstanding balances between the governmental activities and businesstype activities at year
end are reported in the governmentwide financial statements as internal balances

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles reqUIres management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures Accordingly acrual results could differ from those estimates

Longterm Obligations

In the governmentwide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements longterm debt and other longterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities businesstype activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets

Bond premiums discounts and issue costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premiums and discounts
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued r
1

In the fund financial statements governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts as well as bond issue costs Bond proceeds are reported as an other financing source net
of the applicable premium or discount Issue costs even if withheld from the actual net proceeds
received are reported as debt service expendirures For proprietary fund types bond premIUms and

discounts as well as issue costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond issue Bonds

payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount
r

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion ofthe applicable appropriation
is employed in the governmental funds

Encumbrances are recorded at the time a purchase order or other commitment is entered into
Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the estimated amount of expendirures which would
result if unperformed purchase orders and other commitments at year end are completed
Appropriations lapse at year end however the City generally intends to honor purchase orders and
other commitments in process As a result encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as

reservations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities of the Łurrent
period

Equity classifications

Governmentwide statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components

a Invested in capital assets net of related debt consists of capital assets

including restricted capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds notes or other

borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition construction or

improvements of those assets

c

Restricted net assets consists of net assets with constraints placed on

the use either by 1 external groups such as creditors grantors
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or 2 law

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation

Unrestricted net assets all other net assets that do not meet the
definition of restricted or invested in capital assets net of related
debt

b

Fund statements

Inthe fund financial statements governmental funds report reservations offund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally
restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose Designations of
fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change

Budgets and Budetarv Accounting

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all governmental funds with the exception ofthe
Federal Forfeiture Fund and Law Enforcement Trust Fund Special Revenue Funds

I

l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic
financial statements

a The City Manager submits to the Commission a proposed operating and

capital budget for the ensuing fiscal year The budget includes

proposed expendirures and the means of financing them

b Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments

c Prior to October 1 the budget is legally enacted through passage of an

ordinance

d Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control
device during the year for the governmental funds described above

The City Commission by ordinance may make supplemental
appropriations for the year up to the amount of revenues in excess of
those estimated The City Commission made several supplementary
budgetary appropriations throughout the year including approximately
2086000 in the General Fund

e

f Budgets for the governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP

g The City Manager is authorized to transfer part or all of an

unencumbered appropriation balance within departments within a fund
however any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any
department or fund must be approved by the City Commission The
classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed

appropriations is at the department level

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end Unencumbered
amounts are reappropriated in the following yearsbudget for capital
accounts only

h

i Expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any of the governmental
funds

NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTWIDEAND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a Explanation ofcertain differences between thegovernmental fundbalance sheet and the

governmentwide statement of net assets

The government fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance
total governmental funds and net assets governmental activities as reported in the

governmentwide statement ofnet assets One element of that reconciliation explains
longterm liabilities including bonds payable are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds The details of this 37820917
difference is listed on the following page

29



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTWIDEAND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued r

Bonds payable
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences payable
Bond issue costs

37155000
92012
1014723
440818

Net adjustment to reduce fund
balance total governmental
funds to arrive at net assets

governmental activities 37820917

b Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds statement of
revenues expendirures and changes in fund balances and the governmentwide
statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues expenditures and changes in fund
balances includes a reconciliation between net change in fund balance total

governmentalfunds and changes in net assets ofgovernmental activities as reported in
the governmentwide statement of activities One element of that reconciliation

explains that government funds report capital outlays as expendirures However in
the statement of activities the costs of those assetS is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense The details of this 1 693 448
difference are as follows

l

r

Capital outlay 3817055
Depreciation expense 2086802
Current year capital asset disposals 36805

Net adjustment to increase net f
changes in fund balances l
total governmental funds to

arrive at changes in net

assets ofgovernmental
activities 1693448

Another element of that reconciliation states thatsome expenses reported in the
statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds The details ofthis

297936 difference are as follows

Amortization of bond issue costs

Change in interest payable
Change in compensated absences payable

15768
1167

283335

Net adjustment to decrease net

changes in fund balances
total governmentalfunds to

arrive at changes in net assets

ofgovernmental activities 297936
l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 3 PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 each year and are first billed levied and due the

following November L

Under Florida law the assessment of all properties and the collection ofall county municipal
school board and special district property taxes are consolidated in the Offices ofthe County Property
Appraiser and County Tax Collector The laws for the State regulating tax assessments are also

designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide State starnes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills 10 per 1000 of assessed taxable
valuation The millage rate assessed by the City for the year ended September 302004 was22270
mills

The tax levy of the City is established by the City Commission prior to October 1 ofeach year
and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the total tax levy which includes
MiamiDade County MiamiDade County School Board and certain other special taxing districts

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 each year Each
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State Department ofRevenue for review
to determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of State Starutes

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 each year
or as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property
Appraiser MiamiDade County mails each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of the
taxes due and collects the taxes for the City Taxes may be paid upon receipt of the notice from
MiamiDade County with discounts at the rate of four percent 4 if paid in the month of

November three percent 3 if paid in the month of December two percent 2 if paid in the
month of January and one percent 1 if paid in the month of February Taxes paid during the

month of March are without discount and all unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property
become delinquent and liens are placed on April 1 of the year following the year in which the taxes

were assessed Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by MiamiDade County are provided
for in the laws of Florida There were no material delinquent property taxes at September 30 2004

NOTE 4 CASH CASH EQUlVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation all deposits
are held in banking instirutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida to hold public
funds Under Florida Starutes Chapter 280 Florida Security for Public DeTJosits Act the State
Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or another

banking institution eligible collateral In the event of a failure of a qualified public depository the

remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses Accordingly
all amounts reported as cash and cash equivalents are deemed as insured or collateralized and are

therefore not subject to classification by credit risk category under the provisions of GASB Statement
No3 Deposits at September 302004 were 13539452

In accordance with GASB Statement No 31 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools all investments are reported at their fair value
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 4 CASH CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS continued r
The Citys investments are categorized by type to give an indication of the level ofcredit risk

assumed by the City at yearend Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or

for which the City or its agent holds the securities in the Citysname Category 2 includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which the financial institution holds the securities by the financial
institutions trust department or agent in the Citys name Category 3 includes uninsured and

unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the Citys counter party or by its trust

department or agent but not in the Citysname

At September 30 2004 the fair value and category of credit risk of the Citys investments are

as follows

Category 2

Repurchase agreement 500000

Fair
Value

500533

f

All amounts in the State Investment Pool a 2a7like pool administered by the State Board of
Administration are stated at amortized cost which approximates fair value

A reconciliation of cash cash equivalents and investments as shown on the statement of net

assets follows

State Board of Administration
Investment Pool

United State Treasury Securities
Money Market

Pooled cash

Repurchase agreement

Total

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash cash equivalents
and investments

NOTE 5 RECEIVABLES

9345359

6311803
4194093
500533

20351788 r
t

9832230

10519558

20351788

Receivables at September 30 2004 consist of the following

Governmental activities
Utilities service taxes
Police services
Vendors
MiamiDade County
Franchise fees

Totalgovernmental
activities
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE6ACCOUNTSPAYABLE

Accounts payable balances in each fund represent only vendor payables

NOTE 7 INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivables and payables at September 30 2004 were as follows

Receivables Payables

General Fund 6896909 28051
Series 2002 Capital
Construction Fund
Charter School

Building Construction 52493 6275845
Nonmajor governmental funds 28051 372832
Proprietary Fund 300725

Totals 6977453 6977453

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that 1 interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur 2 transactions are recorded in the

accounting systems and 3 payments between funds are actually made

Interfund transfers during the year ended September 30 2004 were as follows

Transfers Transfers
In Out

General Fund 985114 2254886
Charter School Fund 463563
Nonmajor governmental funds 2702849 572610
Proprietary Fund 396904

3687963 3687963

The transfer from the Proprietary Fund to the General Fund in the amount of 396904 was

to reimburse the General Fund for stormwater drainage costs included in the Community Services

Department budget Similarly the transfer from nonmajor governmental funds to the General Fund
was to reimburse the General Fund for street related maintenance costs included in the Community
Services Department budget The transfer of 463563 from the Charter School Fund was to
reimburse the General Fund for accounting costs of the Charter School which are included in the
Finance Support Services Department expendirures and to pay the debt service on the bond issue
which paid to construct the Charter School Because the Charter School has a fiscal year that differs
from the City a portion of the corresponding transfer out will be reflected on the Charter Schools
financial statements for the year ending June 30 2005 The transfer from the General Fund of

2254886 represented transfers to meet debt service requirements for the debt service funds
included under nonmajor governmental funds

33



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS r
Capital assets activity for the year ended September 30 2004 was as follows

Balance Balance
October 1 September 30

2003 Additions Disposals 2004
Governmental Activities

Capila assets not being
depreciated
Land 14592603 14592603
Construction in progtess 98778 98778

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 14592603 98 778 14691381

Capital assets being
depreciated
Buildings 28921883 28921883
Improvements other than

buildings 4636670 257735 4894405
Infrastructure 4482896 1859942 6342838 i

Furniture machinery
and equipment 7082025 1600600 124687 8557938

Total capital assets being
depreciated 45123474 3718277 124687 48717064

Less accumulated
depreciation for

Buildings 1467043 746122 2213165
Improvements other than

buildings 600958 178154 779112 i
Infraslructure 197884 232605 430489 l
Furniture machinery and

equipment 4050884 929921 87882 4 892923

r
Total accumulated lJ

depreciation 6316769 2086802 87882 8315689

Total capital assets
being deprecialed net 38806705 1631475 36805 40401375

Goverrunental
activities capital
assets net 53399308 1730253 36 805 55092756

BusinessrypeActivities

Capital assels being
deprecialed
Infrastructure 5803426 147837 5951263

Less accumulaled depreciation 453423 147242 600665

Businesstype activities

capital assets net 5350003 595 5350598

I
l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functionprograms ofthe primary government as follows

Governmental activities
General government 116612
Public safety 646221
Community services 850368
Nondepartmental 473601

Total depreciation expense
governmental activities 2086802

Businesstype activities
Stormwater 147 242

NOTE 9 LONGTERM DEBT OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The City previously issued 6555000 in Series 2000 Revenue bonds to finance the

acquisition of land for parks and recreational purposes and for the construction of a community
recreation center The bond indenrure relating to this issue requires that a reserve fund of 500000
be established the balance of which at September 30 2004 was sufficient to meet this requirement
The indenture also requires the maintenance of a minimum debt service coverage ratio of250100
At September 30 2004 the City was in compliance with this requirement

The City also previously entered into a bond indenture agreement with the Florida

Intergovernmental Finance Commission through an interlocal governmental agreement As a result
the City issued 12610000 in Series 2002 Revenue bonds to finance the acquisition of land and
construction of a charter school as well as the construction of the community recreation center The
bond indenture relating to this issue requires a reserve fund in the amount of 842000 The City
purchased a surety bond to meet this requirement

Summarv of General LongTermDebt of Governmental Activities

Longterm debt at September 30 2004 was comprised of the following

1999 Revenue bonds issued from the Florida Municipal
Loan Council Inc Principal is due annually over thirty
years in various amounts through April 2029 The bonds
bear interest at various rates 350 5125 and are

payable semiannually on October 1 and April 1 of each

year 19090000

2000 Revenue bonds principal is due annually over twenty
years in various amounts through October 2020 The
bonds bear interest at504 payable semiannually on

October 1 and April 1 of each year 5735000
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 9 LONGTERM DEBT OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES continued

2002 Revenue bonds issued from the Florida

Intergovernmental Finance Commission Principal is due

annually over thirty years in various amounts through
August 2032 The bonds bear interest at various rates

250 500 and are payable semiannually on

February 1 and August 1 of each year

r
i

Accrued vacation and sick leave compensated absences

12330000

913250

r

f1
38068250

Changes in Governmental Fund longterm debt during the year are as follows

Series 1999 Revenue
bonds payable 19500000
Series 2000 Revenue
bonds payable 5945000

Series 2002 Revenue
bonds payable 12610000
Compensaled absences
payable 658249

Tota 3873249

BalanceSeptember 30 Due Within
Retirements One Year fi

I
I

40000 19090000 425000

210000 5735000 220000

280000 12330000 285000

5675 913 250 10 473

905675 38068250 1031473

lBalance
October

1QQL Additions

260676260676

Summary of Future Debt Service Reauirements

The annual debt service requirements to marurity for all Governmental Fund longterm debt are

as follows

Year Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total

2005 930000 1761628 2691628
2006 965000 1728192 2693192
2007 1005000 1691498 2696498
2008 1035000 1652500 2687500
2009 1080000 1610523 2690523

20102014 6155000 7308433 13463433
20152019 7565000 5725287 13290287
20202024 7725000 3766448 11491448
20252029 8635000 1852250 10487250
20302032 2060000 209267 2269267

37155000 27306026 64461026

I

L

36



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits which arose in the normal course of operations are pending
against the City It is managementsopinion based on the advice of the City Attorney that the

outcome ofthese actions will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements ofthe City
Management also believes that the litigation against the City will be covered by insurance

Franchise Fees

The City previously entered into an interlocal agreement with MiamiDade County the
County which provided for the Florida Power Light Co franchise fees collected by the County
within the Citys boundaries to be remitted to the City This agreement will be in effect as long as

the Ordinance establishing the collection ofthese fees is in place In accordance with the agreement
the County remitted approximately 1822500 to the City for the year ended September 30 2004

Stormwater Fees

The City previously entered into another interlocal agreement with the County to administer
bill and collect stormwater utility charges from residents within the Citys boundaries The County
remits all fees collected less the Countyscompensation for the billing and collection ofthese charges
The agreement expired during the year and is currently being negotiated In accordance with this

agreement the County remitted approximately 826200 to the City during the year ended September
30 2004

Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
While no matters of noncompliance were disclosed by the audit grantor agencies may subject grant
programs to additional compliance tests which may result in disallowed costs In the opinion of City
management future disallowances of current grant expenditures if any would not have a material
adverse effect on the Citys fmancial condition

Emplovment Agreement

The City has an employment contract with its City Manager that provides for an annual salary
adjusted for costofliving increases and certain benefits This agreement is effective for an indefinite
term subject to termination of the City Manager by the City Commission in accIJrdance with Article
III Section308 of the City Charter The City Manager must provide two months advance written
notice to resign voluntarily

Charter School Agreements

The City has a contract with the School Board ofMiamiDade County Florida that provides
for A ventura Charter Elementary School to provide the residents ofthe City ofA venrura an education
choice for up to six hundred elementary school srudents The contract ends on June 30 2018 but

provides for a renewal of up to fifteen years by murual agreement of the parties

The City also has a management agreement with Charter School USA Inc The agreement
calls for Charter Schools USA Inc to design build operate and maintain acharter elementary school
for the City of Avenrura The agreement terminates June 30 2008 and calls for annual management
and incentive fees based on funding for srudent enrollment
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004 Ii

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES continued

Other Agreements

n

The City has entered into nonexclusive agreements with several engineering consulting firms

Consultants to provide building inspections and plan review services until September 2005
Pursuant to the agreements the Consultants receive 70 of the gross building permit fee revenues

for the first 100000 in fees in a month and 65 of the amount in excess of 100000 a month

The City is a party to several construction contracts for City infrastructure improvements and
the design and construction of a middle school wing addition to the Charter School The amount

remaining on these uncompleted contracts at September 302004 was approximately 4516400
I

Lease Commitments

The City is lessee on several leases including those for office equipment police cars and

public safety equipment These leases have various terms with expiration dates through fiscal year
2008

Furure aggregate minimum lease payments under the Citys lease agreements are approximately
as follows

n

Year Ending
SePtember 30

2005
2006
2007
2008

Thereafter 2500020500
5500

300
NONE l

r j

Ii

Lease expense for the year ended September 302004 was approximately 101000

NOTE 11 RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts thefts of damage to and
destruction of assets errors and omissions and narural disasters for which the City carries commercial
insurance Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for each of past eight years
In addition there were no reductions in insurance coverage from those in the prior year

NOTE 12 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLANS

Plan Description

The City ofAventura is a single employer that contributes to three defined contribution pension
plans based on employee classification created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section

401a The plans currently cover all fulltime employees of the City Under these plans the City
contributes between 1218 depending on employee classification City contributions for the City
Manager Department Directors and Assistant Department Directors vest in the year they are

contributed City contributions to general employees vest beginning after one year ofservice through
year five in 20 increments Participants are not permitted to make contributions during the year
The City made plan contributions of approximately 382000 during the year Plan provisions and
contribution requirements may be amended by the City Commission

L
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 12 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLANS continued

The Plans assets are administered by ICMA Retirement Corp The City does not exercise any
control or fiduciary responsibility over the Plansassets

NOTE 13 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The City agreed to provide a defined benefit retirement plan effective October12003 through
a collective bargaining contract between the City and the MiamiDade County Police Benevolent

Association The Plan covers only sworn police officers and is funded by a combination of City
contributions employees contributions rollover of401aPlan assets for certain of the employees and
the proceeds of the state insurance premium tax on casualty insurance policies The initial funding
levels of covered payroll are 145 for the Cityscontribution 63 for the employeescontribution
and 5 for the state premiums tax The Plan and employee contributions are mandatory for all sworn

police officers Contribution requirements of the Plan members and the participating employer are

established and may be changed by an amendment to the City ordinance

The City utilizes the entry age normal cost method The asset valuation method is a market
value less unrecognized capital appreciation which is recognized at a rate of 20 per year

Information as of the latest actuarial valuation included no assumed annual inflation rate an

annual investment rate ofrerurn of800 projected annual salary increases of50the amortization
method is level dollar closed and an amortization period of 30 years

On October 1 2003 the last plan year valuation date Plan membership consisted of

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving
benefits
Active plan members

Total

0
74

74

The general administration management and investment decisions of the Plan and the

responsibility for carrying out its provisions is vested in the five member Board of Trustees
Administrative costs of the Plan are financed through current or prior investment earnings

The City has issued standalone financial statements for the Plan which may be obtained from
the City of Aventura Finance Department

The City provides no other postretirement benefits to employees

NOTE 14 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

According to GASB Interpretation No6paragraph 14 no expendirure or liability should be

reported in the governmental funds in connection with compensated absences until they are paid or
in the case of termination payments for unused leave due for payment The City has therefore
recorded a prior period adjustment of 73139 to remove its liability from the governmental funds
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2004

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 24 2004 the City entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement wherebý it would

acquire approximately six acres of land to be used as an expansion of the City park system Pursuant
to the Agreement the City would pay a total purchase price of 3800000 for the parcel with closing
to take place within 150 days of February 24 2004 The closing date was later extended through
December 2004 Pursuant to the agreement in March 2004 the City placed 380000 representing
10 of the purchase price into an escrow account as a good faith deposit As of the date of this

report the City and seller have not agreed to any further extension of the time for closing It is the

Citysposition that the seller is in default of the Agreement In March 2005 the City Commission

approved Resolution No 200510 authorizing the City Attorney to initiate eminent domain

proceedings to acquire the property

If the purchase is completed under the Agreement the parcel will require environmental

cleanup The seller will contribute up to 1000000 toward the cost of said cleanup This
contribution will be placed in escrow pending completion of the cleanup and final report In the event

that the cleanup costs are less than 1000000 the seller would receive the balance remaining in the
escrow account In the event that the cleanup costs exceed 1 million the City would be responsible
for the balance of the costs The City has obtained a phase I and II environmental site assessment

from its environmental engineering consultant and estimated that all costs of cleanup will total

750000 City management believes that the 1000000 held in escrow will be more than sufficient
to cover all costs relating to the cleanup based on the consultants assessment and cost estimate
Under the agreement the purchase is also contingent on the City approving certain zoning changes
to an adjacent property owned by the seller prior to closing

r1

r
I

r

n
i
t

L
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t
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN FUND

Acruarial Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Accrued Actuarial as of

Valuation Value Liability at Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Date of Assets Entrv Age Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

100103 1389389 4080982 2691593 341 4050591 664
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Year ended

September 30

2004

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER

AND THE STATE OF FLORIDA

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN FUND
r

City
Annual

Required
Contribution

fl
Percentage
Contributed

State of Florida
Insurance

Premium Tax

100 50866
r

583892

t

f
I

i j

I
r

I
L

L
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to

expenditures for particular purposes

Police Education Fund This fund is used to account for revenues and expendirures associated with
the two dollars 2 the City receives from each paid traffic citation which by State Statute must

be used to further the education of the Citys police officers

Street Maintenance Fund This fund is used for revenues and expenditures which by State Starute
are designated for street maintenance and construction costs All expendirures are accounted for in
the General Fund by designating specific expendirure accounts in the Community Services Department
and the Capital Improvements Program An operating transfer is made to the General Fund to cover

such expendirures

Police Capital Outlay Impact Fee Fund This fund is used to account for impact fees derived from
new developments and restricted by Ordinance for police capital improvements This fund provides
a funding source to assist the City in providing police services required by the growth in the City

Park Development Fund This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures specifically
earmarked for capital improvements to the Cityspark system This fund accounts for impact fees
derived from new developments and restricte by Ordinance for park capital improvement projects

Federal Forfeiture Fund This fund is used to account for proceeds obtained from the sale of
confiscated and unclaimed property rurned over to the City through court judgments Proceeds are

to be used solely for crime fighting purposes

Law Enforcement Trust Fund This fund is used to account for resources resulting from police
department confiscations and their expendirure for law enforcement purposes

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of
general longterm debt principal and interest

Series 1999 Bond Debt Service Fund This fund is used to accumulate monies for the payment of the
1999 Revenue Bonds Nonadvalorem tax revenues in the governmental funds are pledged for the

payment of principal and interest

Series 2000 Bond Debt Service Fund This fund is used to accumulate monies for the payment ofthe
2000 Revenue bonds Nonadvalorem tax revenues in the governmental funds are pledged for the

payment of principal and interest

Series 2002 Bond Debt Service Fund Charter School Land Acquisition This fund is used to

accumulate monies for the payment of the 2002 Revenue bonds Nonadvalorem tax revenues in the

governmental funds are pledged for the payment of principal and interest

Series 2002 Bond Debt Service Fund Charter School Building Construction This fund is used to

accumulate monies for the payment of the 2002 Revenue bonds Nonadvalorem tax revenues in the

governmental funds are pledged for the payment of principal and interest

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Series 2002 Capital Construction Fund Charter School Land Acquisition This fund is used to fund
the land acquisition for the Charter School



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30 2004

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash cash equivalents
and invesunents

Due from other funds
Due from other governmenlS

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
yearsexpenditures in

Special Revenue

Capital Projects

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and

fund balances

Special Revenue

Police

Capital Law
Police Street Outlay Park Federal Enforcement

Education Maintenance Impact Fee Development Forfeiture Trust
E1illL E1illL E1illL E1illL E1illL ElliL

r
i

7315 367003 122663 883230 445071 94665

21207
128944

8135 495947 122663 883230 466278 94665

r

53618 1702 3343

139485

193103 L1Ql 1W

8135 302844 120961 883230 462935 94665

302844 120961 883230 462935

495947 122663 883230 466278 94665

L

l
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Capital
Debt Service Proiect

Series 2002 Series 2002 Series 2002
Bond Debt Bond Debt Capital

Service Fund Service Fund Construction
Debt Debt Charter Charter Fund CharIer Total

Service Service School School School Nonmajor
Fund 1999 Fund 2000 Land Building Land Governmental

Series Series Acquisition Construction Acquisition Funds

28477 6151 1954575

500533 6063 60 79844 586500
6844 28051

129764

28477 513528 6063 60 79844 2698 890

58663
359814 359814
152523 4593 76231 372832

512337 4593 76231 791309

28477 1191 1470 60 31198

1872770
3613 3613

28 477 I 191 1470 60 3613 1907581

28477 513528 6063 60 79844 2698890
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30 2004

REVENUES

Intergovernmenlal revenues

Fines and forfeitures

Impact fees
Interest income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Operating
Capital outlay
Debt Service

Principal
Interest
Trustee fees

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of

revenues over

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES USES
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other fmancing
sources uses

Net change in
fund balance

FUND BALANCES AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END
OF YEAR

Police
Education
ElliL

3978

2518

bill

1546 Street
Maintenance

ElliL

1322064

1lli

1324999

195545
335642

mm

793812

572610

5726101

221202 Police
Capital
Outlay

Impact Fee

ElliL

158318
TI2

158697

68042

2Qill

90655Special
Revenue

Park Federal

Development Forfeiture

ElliL

596636

602114

602114

602114 96426
100975

20184

1QJM

80791

382144

r
I

Law
Enforcement

Trust
EillL

32537

11QQ

129702
r
l

r
I129702

95405 L

190070

8135 302844 120961 883230 462935 94665
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Capilal
Debt Service Project

Series 2002 Series 2002 Series 2002
Bond Debt Bond Debt Capital

Service Fund Service Fund Construction
Debt Debt Charter Charter Fund Charter Total

Service Service School School School Nonmajor
Fund 1999 Fund 2000 Land Building Land Goverrunental

Series Series AcQuisition Construction AcQuisition Funds

1322064
132941
754954

214 25208 2 169 40780

214 25208 2 169 2250739

198063
553570

410000 210000 132315 147685 900000
928098 299628 264204 294867 1786797
17770 5275 5887 28932

1355868 509628 401 794 448439 3 467362

1355654 484420 401792 448270 1216623

1366768 485611 402507 447963 2702849
572610

1366768 485611 402507 447963 2130239

11114 1191 715 307 913616

17363 755 367 3613 993965

28477 1 191 1470 60 3613 1907581
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30 2004

r
I

Police Education Fund Street Mainlenance Fund

Original
and Final Original Final

Budget Actual Variance Budget Budget Actual Variance

REVENUES
Intergovernmental tevenues 1294000 1294000 1322064 28064
Fines and forfeitures 4300 3978 322
Impact fees
Interest income 2Q 1dQQ

Total revenues 1301500 1301500 1324999 23499

EXPENDITURES
Operating 4390 2518 1872 194000 195545 195545
Capital outlay 540890 539345 335642 203 703

Total expenditures bill Lm 734890 734890 203703 r
l

Excess deficiency of
revenues over

rexpenditures 566610 566610 793812 227202

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES USES
Transfers out 572610 572610 572610
Appropriated fund balance 2QQQ 2QQQ

Total other financihg
sources uses 566610 566610 572610

Net change in
fund balance 1546 1546 221202 221202

FUND BALANCE AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 81642

FUND BALANCE AT END
OF YEAR 8135 8135 302844 302844

L
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Police Capital Impact Fee Fund Park Development Fund

Original Original
and Fina and Final

Budget Aclual Variance Budget Aclual Variance

49000 15838 09318 13000 596636 583636
379 379 5478 5478

49 000 158 697 109 697 13 000 602 114 589114

91000 68042 22958 400000 400000

91000 68042 22958 400000 400000

42000 90655 132655 387000 602114 98914

42000 42000 387000 387000

42000 42000 387000 387000

90655 90655 602114 602114

30306 30306 281116 281116

120961 120961 883230 883230
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 302004 I

f1
Series 1999 Bond Debt Service Fund Series 2000 Bond Debt Service Fund

Original
and Final Original Final

Budget Aclual Variance Budget Budget Aclual Variance

EVENUES
Imerest income 1l1 24958 24958 25208 1lQ

Total revenues lli 24958 24958 25208 1lQ

XPENDITURES
Debl service

Principal 410000 410000 220000 210000 210000
Interest 935683 928098 7585 290569 300569 299628 941
Trustee fees 17770 1ill

Total expendilures 1366768 1 355868 10900 510569 510569 509628 ill

Excess deficiency
f

of revenues over
l

expenditUres 1366768 1355654 11114 485611 485611 484420 1191

THER FINANCING
OURCES

Transfers in 1366768 1366768 485611 485611 485611

Total other

financing sources 1366768 1366768 485611 485611 485611

Net change iri I
fund balance 11114 11114 1191 1191 l

UND BALANCE AT
3EGINNING OF YEAR 17363

UND BALANCE AT
SND OF YEAR 28477 28477 1191

L
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Series 2002 Bond Debt Service Fund Series 2002 Bond Debt Service Fund
Charter School Land Acquisition Charter School Building Construction

Original Final Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance Budget Budget Actual Variance

1 12 12

1 1 l2 l2

132315 132315 132315 147685 147685 47685
26492 264205 264204 294881 29488 294867 14

1lf 6000 1ll

396507 402507 401794 1U 442566 448566 448439 1TI

396507 402507 401792 442566 448566 448270 12Q

396507 402507 402507 442566 448566 447963 i@

396 507 402507 402507 442566 448 566 447 963 i@

715 75 307 307

ill 21 21

1470 1470 60 60
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 302004

Series 2000 Capital Construction Fund

Original
and Final
Budget Actual Variance

r
I

REVENUES
Interest income 17902 23014 5112

Total revenues 17902 23014 5112

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay 4094000 17890 4076110

Total expenditures 4094000 17890 4076110

Excess deficiency of revenues over

expenditures 4076098 5124 4081222

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Appropriated fund balance 4076098 4076098

Total other fmancing sources uses 4076098 4076098

Nel change in fund balance 5124 5124

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4076098 4 076098

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 4081222 4081222

I

r

r

L

f

l

L
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Series 2002 Capilal Construction Fund
Charter School Land Acquisition

Original
and Final

Budget Actual Variance

Series 2002 Capital Construction Fund
Charter School Building Construction

Original
and Final

Budget Actual Variance

20387 120387 30100 38535 8435

20 387 120387 30100 38 535 8435

24000 24000 30100 30051 49

24000 24000 30100 30051 49

3613 3613 8484 8484

3613 13613

3613 13613

8484 8484

3613 3613

3613 3613 8484 8484
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CITY
OF
A
VENTURA
FLORIDA

CAPITAL
ASSETS
USED
IN
THE
OPERATION
OF
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

SCHEDULE
OF

CAPITAL
ASSETS
BY
FUNCTION
AND
ACTIVITY

September
302004 Improvements

Machinery

Other
Than

and

Function
and
Activi1y

Land

Buildings

Buildings
Infrastrucrure
Equipment

Total

GENERAL
GOVERNMENT

2716

1014756

1017472

PUBLIC
SAFETY

5895200

5895200

COMMUNITY
SERVICES

6954056

II
307497

4584715

6342838

1647982

30837088

NONDEPARTMENTAL
7638547

17614386

306974

25559907

CONSTRUCTION
IN
PROGRESS

98778

98778

Total
capital
assets

allocated
to

functions
14592603
29020661

4894405

6342838

8

557
938

63408445
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
CAPlT AL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CAPfTAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
For the Year Ended September 30 2004

Capital Capital
Assets Assets

October 1 September 30
2003 Additions Disposals 2004

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 914547 102925 1017472

PUBLIC SAFETY 5322017 697871 124687 5895201

COMMUNITY SERVICES 27919606 3016259 30935865

NONDEPARTMENTAL 25559907 25559907

Total capital
assets 59716077 3817055 124687 63408445
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Fiscal
Year

199596

199697

199798

199899

199900

200001

2001102

200203

200304

NOTES 1
2

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 1

DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE 2

General Publïc Community
Government Safety Services

332840 46234 176794

1122984 4377974 1589624

1449408 6535920 1468806

1561283 6831446 2419162

1526679 7804469 2717728

1831007 8607783 3102494

2015866 9332899 3600234

2163885 9438156 4226979

2371236 10594453 7495145

r

i

f

r
I

Includes the General Special Revenue Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds
The City was incorporated during fiscal year 199596

i
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Non Capital Debt
departmental Outlav Service Total

107987 323387 987242

465192 5301853 111955 12969582

687683 8077 202 237549 18456568

543665 10919960 7591607 29867123

529737 11850784 1337410 25766807

725434 11652841 1902830 27822389

1163975 12409178 1866438 30388590

1040052 12153846 2415206 31438124

1365719 3905875 2715729 28448157
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Fiscal
Year

199596

199697

199798

199899

199900

200001

200102

200203

200304

NOTES 1
2

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
GENERAL REVENUES BY SOURCE 1

DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE 2

Licenses
Inter and

Taxes Governmental Permits

3767199 208193 1904

9376999 1379510 1368022

10671397 1390596 2756432

12990627 2033221 1781863

13717316 2836374 1886777

14171431 2688105 2624459

15594548 3091728 3360172

16347306 296558 2185654

17788520 7663308 2146913

r

V

r

t

f
Includes the General Special Revenue Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds
The City was incorporated during fiscal year 199596

r

t

L
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Charges
for Fines and

Services Forfeirures Interest Other Total

15263 2027 3994586

187558 42771 315253 491529 13161642

512141 667824 515759 869239 17383388

918108 531499 586067 2080201 20921586

797774 441717 1059418 836386 21575762

647410 491688 11l56S0 1165394 22904137

722125 386758 310096 870976 24336403

965067 399899 246216 161045 23270345

1099321 351698 174983 975564 30200307
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE 3

in GOOs

1
Property Property Net

Fiscal Tax Tax Tax
Year Levv Discount Levy

199697 5802 199 5603

199798 6173 234 5939

199899 6894 239 6655

199900 7549 291 7258

200001 7818 305 7513

200102 8717 313 8404

200203 9282 290 8992

200304 10536 337 10199

f
i

í
l

SOURCE MiamiDade County Florida Tax Collector

NOTES 1 Florida Law allows up to a 4 discount for timely payment of property taxes

2 Includes corrections and penalties
3 The City was incorporated during the 199596fiscal year The first year that the City was

authorized to levy ad valorem property taxes was the 199697fiscal year

f

L

l
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Percentage of
2 Total Tax

Current Delinquent Total Collections
Tax Tax Tax To Net

Collection Collection Collection Tax Levy

5561 8 5569 9939

5823 18 5841 9835

6572 23 6595 9910

71l5 26 7141 9839

7397 43 7440 9903

8227 201 8428 10029

9013 62 9075 10092

10054 89 10143 9945
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 1

DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE 2

Nonexempt Nonexempt Total
Fiscal Real Personal Taxable
Year Propertv Property Valuations

199697 2509850919 95280080 2605130999

199798 2664701818 107083192 2771785010

199899 2971907364 123652446 3095559810

199900 3238050389 142847663 3380898052

200001 3349591933 160779980 3510371913

200102 3752226238 162055639 3914281877

200203 4007501399 160384595 4167885994

200304 4569228195 161725854 4730954049

I

Fl

r 1

l

SOURCE MiamiDade County Florida Tax Collector f
NOTES 1

2
Florida Law requires all property to be assessed at current fair market value
The City was incorporated during the 199596fiscal year The fITst year that the City was

authorized to levy ad valorem property taxes was the 199697fiscal year

l

l
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX MILLAGE RATES DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

PER1000 OF TAXABLE VALUE
DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE 1

Tax
Fiscal Roll
Year Year City School County

199697 1996 22270 103660 103270

199798 1997 22270 104620 99930

199899 1998 22270 101600 100580

199900 1999 22270 96440 96980

200001 2000 22270 96170 95060

2001102 2001 22270 93760 96060

200203 2002 22270 92520 94260

200304 2003 22270 91000 99010

SOURCE MiamiDade County Florida Tax Collector

NOTE 1 The City was incorporated during the 199596fiscal year The first year that the City was

authorized to levy ad valorem property taxes was the 199697fiscal year
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South
Florida Florida
Water Inland

Everglades Management Navigation
Project District District Total

01000 05720 00380 236300

01000 05970 00500 234290

01000 05970 00470 231890

01000 05970 00440 223100

01000 05970 00410 220880

01000 05970 00386 219446

01000 05970 00385 216405

01000 05970 00385 219635
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
RATIO OF NET BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL ASSESSED VALUE AND NET

BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE 3

i
l i

Fiscal
Year

in OOOs

2
Assessed Gross

1 Taxable Bonded

Population Value Debt

20383 2605131 3276

20349 2771785 6196

22800 3095560 21000

25267 3380898 20645

25768 3510372 26610

26142 3914281 38650

27241 4167886 38055

28207 4730954 37155

r1

199697

199798

r

199899

199900

2000101

2001102

r200203200304

Source 1 Population is as of April 1 ofeach year per the University ofFlorida Bureau ofEconomic
Business Research

2 The City was incorporated in November 1995 Accurate estimates of population were

not available until April 1 1997 For the 199596fiscal year the City was not in
existence at the time that assessed taxable value was determined

f
L

I
l

64



Debt Ratio of
Service Net Bonded
Funds Net Debt To Net Bonded

Available Bonded Assessed Debt Per
Net Debt Value Capita

189 3087 012 15145

208 5988 021 29427

351 20649 067 90566

356 20289 060 80298

866 25744 073 99906

1668 36982 094 141466

529 37526 090 137756

31 37124 079 131613
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

BONDED DEBT
September 30 2004

The City Charter allows revenue bonds to be issued when authorized by the City
Commission as long as five of the seven Commission members approve the debt Ad
Valorem general obligation bonds must be approved by referendum of the electorate
The Charter provides no limit on the amount of general obligation debt however the

adopted Capital Improvement Program provides that general obligation bonds shall not

exceed 10 of the total assessed value of the City

ASSESSED VALUATION OF TAXABLE REAL
AND PERSONAL PROPERTY

BONDED DEBT LIMIT 10 OF ABOVE 1

AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT
Total bonded debt
Less debt to be repaid from specified revenue sources

Covenant to budget and appropriate

TOTAL AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 1

NOTE 1

66

37155000

37155000

4730954049
n

473095405

473 095405

n

L

r

l

L

l



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

September 30 2004

in OOOs

1
Percentage Amount

Applicable to Applicable to
Net Debt the City of the City of

Jurisdiction Outstanding Avenrura Avenrura

MIAMIDADE BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 225581 2 371 8369

MIAMIDADE COUNTY
SCHOOL BOARD 750606 2 371 27847

CITY OF AVENTURA 37140 10000 37140

1013327 Total 73356

NOTES 1
2

Based on ratio of assessed taxable value
Source MiamiDade County Florida Finance Department
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL

BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE 2

Ratio of rDebt
I Service
Total to Total

General General
Fiscal Total Debt Governmental Governmental
Year Principal merest Other Service Expenditures Expenditures

re

199596 987242 00 l

199697 111955 111955 12969582 086
f

199798 237549 237549 18456568 129

199899 6900000 691607 7591607 29867123 2542
3 3 3

199900 335000 982410 15809 1353219 25766807 526 r1

l j
200001 590000 1260248 18082 1868330 27822389 672

200102 570000 1276224 20214 1866438 30388590 615 f
200203 595000 1746446 73760 2415206 31438124 768

200304 900000 1786797 28932 2715729 28448157 954

NOTES 1 Includes the General Special Revenue Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds

2 The City was incorporated during the 199596fiscal year
3 Includes 6900000 to refund the 1996 Line of Credit

l

l

L
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
ESTIMATED VALUE OF CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

DATE OF INCORPORATION NOVEMBER 1995 TO DATE

in OOOs

Estimated Value of Construction

2
Number Other Bank
of New New than New Number of Deposits

Fiscal Housing Housing Housing Permits County
Year Units Units Units Total Issued Thousands

199697 229 55756 209760 265516 1719 34395088
1

199798 798 140775 129438 270213 4506 34739602

199899 365 109823 57229 167052 4194 37403279

199900 823 95433 36403 131897 4915 38913181

200001 689 122617 43181 165798 5290 44450858

200102 377 155765 31807 187572 3820 48987245

200203 1079 152424 83247 235671 2675 53833682

200304 231 62675 10047 72722 2872 58816272

NOTE 1

2

The City began processing building permits for construction within its corporate limits in

November 1996 Prior to that date building permits were processed by MiamiDade

County and information is not available for that period
MiamiDade County bank data is from the Florida Bankers Association Specific data for
the City of Aventura is not available
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Companv Name

1 A ventura Mall Ventures

2 The Bay Club of Aventura

3 Turnberry Country Club

4 Miami Beach Healthcare

Group LTD

5 Summit Properties

6 D Soffer B Redich Trust

7 Bruce Strohm D
Neithercut TRS

8 Champion Retail LTD
D Soffer B Redich

Trust

9 Prudential Insurance Co

10 Shefaor Tarragon LLP

Total

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

FISCAL YEAR 200203

in OOOs

Tvpe of Business

Shopping Center

Rental Apartment Complex

Golf Course and Hotel

HospitalMedical Center

Rental Apartment Complex

Developer

Rental Apartment Complex

Developer

Shopping Center

Rental Apartment Complex

SOURCE Tax roll of MiamiDade County Florida

70

Assessed
Value

Percentage
of Total
Taxable

Value

r

r
I

274800

73815

581

156

n
72963 154

52153

38636

110

082
r

i34417 073

33971 072 r

29791

26600

063

056

25600662746

054

1401 l
r
l



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHICS AND MISCELLANEOUS S1 A11S11C5

September 30 2004

DATE OF INCORPORATION

FORM OF CITY
GOVERNMENT

November 7 1995

Commission Manager

AREA

POPULATION PER STATE
ESTIMATE 35

Square Miles

28207

ETHNIC DISTRIBUTION
White NonHispanic
Hispanic

731
207

AfricanAmerican
Other

17
45

AGE DISTRIBUTION
Under 20
2034
3554
5564
65

110
182
235
120
353

AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD SIZE

Average Household size
Average Family size

179
245

HOUSING OCCUPANCY
Total housing units
Owner occupied housing units
Renter occupied housing units
Seasonal recreational and vacant

housing units

20020
10044
3956

6020

FULLTIME EMPLOYEES

PUBLIC FACILITIES LOCATED
WITHIN CORPORATE LIMITS

148 Public Tennis Center

Public Recreation Center

Public Parks

Open Space Recreation acres
1

21 Public School
Charter School

0
1

PUBLIC LIBRARIES OPERATED BY
MIAMIDADE COUNTY

FIRE STATIONS OPERA TED BY
MIAMIDADE COUNTY

Police Station

PoliceSubstations 3
2

State of Florida Bureau of Economic Business Research Population is as of April 1 2004

US Census Bureau Profile of General Demographic Characteristics 2000 for Aventura Florida

City of Aventura comprehensive plan
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OTHER REPORTS OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS



KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLICACCOUNTAiTS

CHRISTOPHER L COLUNSCPA
CHARLES KRUMPFCPA

ISRAEL I GOMEzCPA

KEVIN RROACHCPA

6550 NORTH FEDERAL HIGHWAY

SUlTE41O

FORT LAUDERDALE FLORIDA 33308

9547710896
FAX 9549389353

EMAIL kmc@kmccpacom

JOHNR KEEFE CPA OSEPH DLEO CPA

JOHN EMCULLOUGHCPARETIRED WJLUAMG BENSON CPA

THOMAS T CARPENnR CPA BRIAN DPINNELLCPA

PAUL B SNEIDERCPARETIREDI KENNETHG SMITH CPA

STEVEN H WOODSCU LOUIS RPRO�TIOCPA

DAVIDT WILLIAMSCPA CYNTHIA L CALVERT CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor City Commission and City Manager
City of Aventura Florida

Aventura Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Aventura Florida as of and for the year
ended September 30 2004 and have issued our report thereon dated February 2 2005 We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States

Comuliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City ofAvenrura Floridasfinancial
statements are free of material misstatement we performed tests of its compliance with certain

provisions oflaws regulations contracts and grants noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of fmancial statement amounts However providing an

opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly we

do not express such an opinion The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit we considered the City of Aventura Floridas internal
control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of

expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control
over financial reporting Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not

necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material
weaknesses A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of
the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and
not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their

assigned functions We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses
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City of Aventura Florida

This report is intended for the information of City management members of the City
Commission the Office of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and other grantor agencies
However this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited

i

r

Únc LL

KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida
February 2 2005 r

1

L

r

l
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KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLICACCOUNTA1lTS

2ífJEnJtrjitifi
uooü øRliirbUbRALHKllA

SUITE 410

FORT LAUDERDALE FLORIDA 33308

954 7710896

FAX 954 9389353

EMAIL kmc@kmccpacom

JOHN RI�EFECPA JOSEPH D LEO CPA

JOHNEMCULLOUGHCPARETIRED WILLIAM G BENSON CPA

THOMAS T CARPENnR CPA BRIAN DPINNELLCPA
PAUL B SNEIDER CPA RETIRED KENNETH G SMITHCPA
STEVEN HWOODSCPA LOUIS RPRO�ITOCPA
DAVID TWllUAMSCPA CYNTHIA L CALVERTCPA

CHRISTOPHER L COLLINSCPA
CHARLES KRUMPPCPA

ISRAEL I GOMEZCPA

I�VINR ROACHCPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO CITY MANAGEMENT

To the Honorable Mayor City Commission and City Manager
City of Aventura Florida
Avenrura Florida

We have audited the financial statements ofCity of Avenrura Florida as ofand for the year ended

SeptembŁr 30 2004 and have issued our report thereon dated February22005

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States We have also issued our

Independent Auditors Report onCompliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based
on an Audit ofFinancial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
That report dated February 2 2005 should be considered in conjunction with this report to City
management

Additionally our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10550 Rules ofthe Auditor
General Those rules Section 1O5541g1arequire that we address in the report to City
management if not already addressed in the auditors report on compliance and internal controls
whether or not inaccuracies irregularities shortages defalcations fraud andor violations oflaws
rules regulations and contracrual provisions reported in the preceding annual financial audit report
have been corrected There were no inaccuracies irregularities shortages defalcations fraud andor
violations of laws rules regulations and contracrual provisions disclosed in the preceding annual
financial audit report

The Rules ofthe Auditor General Section105541glbrequire that we address in the report
to City management if not already addressed in the auditors report on compliance and internal

controls whether or not recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have
been followed There were no recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General Section105541g2 the scope of our audit
included a review of the provisions of Section 218415 Florida Starutes regarding the investment
of public funds In connection with our audit we determined that the City complied with Section

218415 Florida Statutes
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City of Aventura Florida

The Rules ofthe Auditor General Section105541g4require disclosure in the report to City
management of the following matters if not already addressed in the auditors report on compliance
and internal controls 1 violations of laws rules regulations and contracrual provisions that have

occurred or are likely to have occurred 2 improper or illegal expendirures 3 improper or

inadequate accounting procedures eg the omission of required disclosures from the fmancial

statements 4 failure to properly record fmancial transactions and 5 other inaccuracies shortages
defalcations and instances of fraud discoveredbyor that come to the attention of the auditor Our
audit disclosed no matters requiring disclosure in the report to City management or the financial
statements

The Rules of the Auditor General Section 105541g5 also require that the name or official
title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity
be disclosed in the report to City management unless disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements The City of Aventura Florida was created by Resolution NoRII0495of the Miami
Dade County Commission on July 25 1995 The City does not have any component units

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General Section105541g6a the scope ofour audit
included a review of the provisions of Section 2185031 Florida Statutes regarding fmancial

emergencies In connection with our audit we determined that the City is not in a state of mancial

emergency as a consequence of the conditions described in Section 2185031FloridaStatutes

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General Section105541g6b we determined that
the annual fmancial report for the City for the year ended September 30 2004 filed with the

Department of Banking and Finance pursuant to Section 21832 Florida Statutes is in agreement
with the annual financial audit report for the year ended September 30 2004

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General Section10554g6cand 10556 we applied
financial condition assessment procedures It is managementsresponsibility to monitor the entitys
financial condition and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made

by management and the review of fmancial information provided by same

This report to management is intended solely for the information of management members ofthe

City Commission and the Auditor General of the State of Florida and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties This restriction is not intended to

limit the distribution of this report which is a matter of public record

œ 74fCu
KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 2 2005
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